COMMUNITY & CHILDREN'S SERVICES COMMITTEE

Thursday, 4 July 2024

Minutes of the meeting of the Community & Children's Services Committee held at Committee Rooms, West Wing, Guildhall on Thursday, 4 July 2024 at 12.00 pm

Present

Members:

Matthew Bell Deputy Natasha Maria Cabrera Lloyd-

Anne Corbett Owen

Mary Durcan Eamonn Mullally

Helen Fentimen OBE JP (Chairman) Ryan

Deputy John Fletcher
Dawn Frampton
Steve Goodman OBE
Naresh Hari Sonpar
Jacqui Webster
Deputy Ceri Wilkins

Officers:

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Alderman Christopher Makin, Alderman Prem Goyal, Deputy Nighat Qureishi, Timothy McNally, Ruby Sayed and Deputy Philip Woodhouse.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

There was one declaration from Eamonn Mullally concerning his involvement in the 'Young at Heart' programme is run in partnership with Golden Lane Sport & Fitness and would therefore not participate in the vote regarding item 41a.

3. MINUTES

RESOLVED – That, the public and non-public summary of the meeting held on 1 May 2024 be agreed as a correct record.

4. OUTSTANDING ACTIONS

The Committee received a report of the Town Clerk.

The following points were noted:

- Window Replacements: There were several reports (31 to 35) relating to window works. The specific issue around the working together guidance is likely to be brought back in December.
- Asset Management Strategy: This is expected to be addressed in October.
- Golden Lane Leisure Centre: The relevant report is in the supplementary packet 41A.

- Financial Support for Major Works: This was scheduled for July but is now expected in the autumn.
- Housing Complaints: The relevant report is 25A.
- SEND (Special Educational Needs and Disabilities): The peer review feedback has been received and will lead to an amended SEND strategy to be brought to the committee in September.
- Member Engagement on Housing Estates: This is expected to be addressed in October.

5. TO ELECT A MEMBER TO THE PROJECTS AND PROCUREMENT SUB COMMITTEE

RESOLVED – That, Eamonn Mullally be appointed to the Projects and Procurement Sub-Committee for the ensuing year.

6. TO ELECT A MEMBER FROM THE COURT OF COMMON COUNCIL TO THE HOMELESSNESS AND ROUGH SLEEPING SUB COMMITTEE

RESOLVED – That, Eamonn Mullally be appointed to the Projects and Procurement Sub-Committee for the ensuing year.

7. HOUSING COMPLAINTS UPDATE

The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director, Community and Children's Services, concerning actions contained in the Housing Management and Almshouses Sub-Committee action tracker, relating to housing complaints and the potential use of arbitration as a means of resolving complaints.

Members noted that the item would be discussed under any other business 25a.

8. HOUSING NET ZERO DELIVERY PLAN

The Committee considered a report of the City Surveyor concerning Agree the reporting cycle for complaints matters proposed in section 11.

The following points were noted:

- The Committee discussed the challenges of meeting the net zero target by 2027 and the need for a plan to achieve it.
- The Committee was asked to agree to proceed with work to integrate retrofit archetypes into the asset management strategy and to embark on a retrofit void program.
- The Committee discussed the challenges of switching fuel sources from gas to electricity and the potential impact on residents' bills.
- The Committee discussed the importance of reducing the demand for heat within properties through sensible insulation.
- The Committee approved the recommendations on page 53, including the addition of integrating climate action and HRA development programs into a single program of works.

RESOLVED – That Members,

- a) Agree the recommended approach to integrating consideration of the Retrofit Archetypes and measures into the forthcoming Housing Asset Management Strategy.
- b) Agree the recommended pilot energy void programme and negate the two-week void KPI.
- c) Agree the recommended priorities in paragraph 10.
- d) Agree the recommended approach of joining the London Councils' Strategic Partnership to access SHDF funding.

9. **HOLLOWAY PARK**

The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director, Community and Children's Services, concerning a request from Peabody's lawyers to rectify the double registration which affects both of the City of London Corporations respective title plans.

The following points were noted:

- The Committee discussed the issue of double registration of Holloway Park, which was discovered during the redevelopment of the Holloway prison site by Peabody.
- It was noted that the area in question is physically in possession of the Peabody site and not in possession of the City of London side.
- The Committee approved the decision to rectify the double registration.

RESOLVED – That Members, agree to the transfer of the overlapping strip of land from the City's Title AGL362129, as shown tinted blue on the plan in the appendix, to Peabody for a nominal payment of £1.

10. FUTURE PLANNING FOR SEVERE WEATHER EMERGENCY PROTOCOL (SWEP)

The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director, Community and Children's Services, concerning how and why the City of London delivers a Severe Weather Emergency Protocol (SWEP) and the methodology currently in use.

The following points were noted:

- The Committee was presented with three options for delivering a more resilient swept model in the future.
- It was noted that option A was to change nothing, Option B retained current service delivery but described how an increased budget offers greater flexibility and reduces the risk of departmental overspend, and Option C set out a more comprehensive swept model designed to meet current and future swept demands.
- Members were informed that the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Sub-Committee supports Option C and recommended this option to the Community and Children's Services Committee for consideration.
- It was noted that an endorsement of Option C meant that Members were supporting the progression of this proposal via the Resource Allocation Sub-Committee as part of a future budget setting process.

RESOLVED – That Members endorse the recommendation made by the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Sub-Committee to progress option C as outlined in the report.

11. CARE LEAVER OFFER

The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director, Community and Children's Services, concerning he fully revised offer to Care Leavers supported by the City of London.

The following points were noted:

- It was noted that the offer had been recommended by the Safeguarding Sub-Committee and would not cost any more money than what was already available.
- Officers informed Members that the offer was ambitious and Ofsted would judge the Committee on it, but most importantly, the children would thrive in their care.
- Members were informed that the offer was available in the top 8 languages and would also be available in audio form for children and young people.
- The committee approved the care leaver offer.

RESOLVED – That Members, approve the offer as outlined in the report.

12. HOMELESSNESS AND ROUGH SLEEPING SERVICES *

The Committee received a report of the Executive Director, Community and Children's Services, concerning the additional duties placed on the City of London Corporation's (CoL's) Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Team (HRST) by the introduction of the Domestic Abuse Act 2021 (DAA 2021).

The item was received for information and there were no arising questions.

13. EMERGENCY AND TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATION PLACEMENTS - STAGE 1 STRATEGY REPORT AND STAGE 2 AWARD REPORT *

The Committee received a joint report of the Commercial Director and Executive Director, Community and Children's Services, concerning the recommended procurement strategy to access Emergency and Temporary Accommodation.

The item was received for information and there were no arising questions.

14. SCHOOL ADMISSIONS UPDATE *

The Committee received a report of the Executive Director, Community and Children's Services, concerning the allocation of primary and secondary school places for City of London resident pupils for the academic year 2024/25.

The item was received for information and there were no arising questions.

15. ADULT SKILLS, EDUCATION AND APPRENTICESHIP UPDATE *

The Committee received a report of the Executive Director, Community and Children's Services, concerning an update of the Adult Skills Education and Apprenticeship Service's delivery activities.

The item was received for information and there were no arising questions.

16. CHILDREN'S SOCIAL CARE REFORM *

The Committee received a report of the Executive Director, Community and Children's Services, concerning an update for Members on the City of London Corporation (City Corporation) Department for Community and Children's Services (DCCS) response to the Department for Education's (DfE's) Children's Social Care reform programme.

The item was received for information and there were no arising questions.

17. ADULT SOCIAL CARE SELF-ASSESSMENT *

The Committee received a report of the Executive Director, Community and Children's Services, concerning the City of London Corporation's Adult Social Care Self-Assessment 2024, which will support the inspection of our Adult Social Care services by the Care Quality Commission (CQC).

The item was received for information and there were no arising questions.

18. PAN LONDON CHILDREN IN CARE COUNCIL *

The Committee received a report of the Executive Director, Community and Children's Services, concerning the work underway as part of the Pan London Children in Care Council (CiCC), which is jointly funded by the City of London Corporation and Association of London Directors of Children's Services (ALDCS).

The item was received for information and there were no arising questions.

19. EDUCATIONAL CAMPAIGN TACKLING VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS - UPDATE*

The Committee received a report of the Executive Director, Community and Children's Services, concerning an update Members on the progress of the Violence Against Women and Girls campaign approved in November 2023.

The item was received for information and there were no arising questions.

20. REVENUE OUTTURN 2023/24 - COMMUNITY AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES COMMITTEE (CITY FUND) *

The Committee received a report of the Executive Director, Community and Children's Services, concerning the 2023/24 revenue outturn for the non-Housing Revenue Account (HRA) services overseen by your Committee with the final agreed budget for the year.

The item was received for information and there were no arising questions.

21. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) OUTTURN 2023-24 *

The Committee received a joint report of the Chamberlain and Executive Director, Community and Children's Services, concerning the outturn for the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) in 2023/24 with the final agreed budget for the year.

The item was received for information and there were no arising questions.

22. WARDMOTES

The Committee received resolutions from recent Wardmotes.

It was noted that a full report addressing the wardmote resolutions would be brought back to a future Committee.

23. UPDATES FROM SUB COMMITTEES, ALLOCATED MEMBERS AND PORTFOLIO HOLDERS

There were no updates from sub-committees, allocated Members or Portfolio Holders.

The item was received for information and there were no arising questions.

24. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There was a question raised by a Member concerning late cancellations and lack of access at Golden Lane pool.

Officers responded and explained that the problem was caused by the pool operator, who had a staff shortage issue and could not provide enough lifeguards. They also noted that they was trying to meet with the pool operator's director, however there were some insurance and emergency planning issues to resolve.

25. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT

There was one item or urgent business concerning Housing Complaints Update.

25.1 Complaints Policy Update

The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director, Community and Children's Services, concerning approving the updated Housing Complaints Policy for use by the Housing Division.

The following points were noted:

- The policy was amended considering recent changes brought in by the Housing Ombudsman to the complaint handling code.
- The amendments were designed to help comply with the letter of that code.
- The housing complaints team manages complaints on behalf of the Barbican.

The updated policy would be publicised to residents.

RESOLVED – That Members, approve the updated Housing Complaints Policy for use by the Housing Division.

26. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

27. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES

RESOLVED – That, the non-public minutes of the of the meeting held on 1 May 2024 be agreed as a correct record.

28. NON-PUBLIC OUTSTANDING ACTIONS

The Committee received the non-public outstanding actions list.

29. CHARITIES REVIEW RECOMMENDATIONS - THE CITY OF LONDON ALMSHOUSES (REGISTERED CHARITY NUMBER: 1005857)

The Committee considered a report of the Acting Managing Director, City Bridge Foundation.

30. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) COMMERCIAL PROPERTY - DEBT POSITION, PROGRESS AGAINST ARREARS RECOVERY AND VACANT UNITS *

The Committee received a joint report of the Executive Director, Community and Children's Services, The City Surveyor and Executive Director, Property.

31. WINDOW REPLACEMENT AND COMMON PARTS REDECORATIONS: HOLLOWAY ESTATE

The Committee considered a report the Executive Director, Community and Children's Services.

32. WINDOW REPLACEMENT AND COMMON PARTS REDECORATIONS: SOUTHWARK ESTATES

The Committee considered a report the Executive Director, Community and Children's Services.

33. WINDOW REPLACEMENT AND COMMON PARTS REDECORATIONS: SYDENHAM HILL

The Committee considered a report the Executive Director, Community and Children's Services.

34. REPLACEMENT AND COMMON PARTS REDECORATIONS: WINDSOR HOUSE

35. ASSESSMENT CENTRE FOR ROUGH SLEEPERS

The Committee considered a joint report of the City Surveyor and Executive Director, Community and Children's Services.

36. SPORT AND LEISURE FACILITY INVESTMENT - OPTIONS APPRAISAL

The item was considered under item 41a.

37. SHOE LANE LIBRARY TERMS AND SPECIFICATION

The Committee considered a report the Executive Director, Community and Children's Services.

38. EXTENSION TO LIFT CONTRACT *

The Committee received a report the Executive Director, Community and Children's Services.

39. NON PUBLIC APPENDICES *

The appendices were noted by the Committee.

- 39.1 Severe Weather Emergency Protocol
- 39.2 **School Admissions**

40. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There were no questions.

41. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There was one item of urgent business concerning Sport and Leisure Facility Investment.

41.1 Sport & Leisure Facility Investment - Options Appraisal

The Committee considered a joint report of Executive Director, Community and Children's Services and Executive Director, Corporate Communications and External Affairs.

41.2 Sydenham Hill Redevelopment, Lewisham - Issue Report

The Committee considered a report of the City Surveyor.

	3	
Chairma	n	

The meeting ended at 2.15 pm

Contact Officer: blair.stringman@cityoflondon.gov.uk